

within thirty years of the date of issuance in accordance with Article VIII, section 1 of the state Constitution.

The state finance committee is authorized to prescribe the form of the bonds, the time of sale of all or any portion or portions of the bonds, and the conditions of sale and issuance thereof.

The bonds shall pledge the full faith and credit of the state of Washington and contain an unconditional promise to pay the principal and interest when due. The committee may provide that the bonds, or any of them may be called prior to the due date thereof under such terms and conditions as it may determine. The state finance committee may authorize the use of facsimile signatures in the issuance of the bonds.

Passed the House April 23, 1981.

Passed the Senate April 21, 1981.

Approved by the Governor May 18, 1981.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 18, 1981.

CHAPTER 245

[Senate Bill No. 3375]

DRIVER'S LICENSE—FEE, RENEWAL, MONEYS DISTRIBUTION, TEST

AN ACT Relating to driver's licenses; amending section 11, chapter 121, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. as last amended by section 3, chapter 191, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 46.20.161; amending section 17, chapter 121, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. as last amended by section 4, chapter 191, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 46.20.181; amending section 4, chapter 25, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 3, chapter 63, Laws of 1979 and RCW 46.68.041; amending section 46.20.130, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 2, chapter 232, Laws of 1967 and RCW 46.20.130; declaring an emergency; and providing an effective date.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 11, chapter 121, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. as last amended by section 3, chapter 191, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 46.20.161 are each amended to read as follows:

The department (~~shall~~), upon receipt of a fee of (~~six~~) fourteen dollars, which includes the fee for the required photograph, shall issue to every applicant qualifying therefor a driver's license, which license shall bear thereon a distinguishing number assigned to the licensee, the full name, date of birth, residence address, and a brief description of the licensee, and either a facsimile of the signature of the licensee or a space upon which the licensee shall write his usual signature with pen and ink immediately upon receipt of the license. No license shall be valid until it has been so signed by the licensee.

Sec. 2. Section 17, chapter 121, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. as last amended by section 4, chapter 191, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 46.20.181 are each amended to read as follows:

Every driver's license shall expire on the ~~((second))~~ fourth anniversary of the licensee's birthdate following the issuance of such license: PROVIDED, That during the period July 1, 1981, through and including June 30, 1983, the department shall implement a system of staggering the renewal periods of currently licensed drivers so as to make approximately one-half of such renewals for a two-year period and the other one-half for a four-year period. Every such license shall be renewable on or before its expiration upon application prescribed by the department and the payment of a fee of ~~((six))~~ fourteen dollars, or of seven dollars in the case of those being renewed for only two years. These fees include the fee for the required photograph.

Sec. 3. Section 4, chapter 25, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 3, chapter 63, Laws of 1979 and RCW 46.68.041 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The department shall forward all funds accruing under the provisions of chapter 46.20 RCW together with a proper identifying, detailed report to the state treasurer who shall deposit such moneys to the credit of the highway safety fund except as otherwise provided in this section.

(2) One dollar and forty cents of each fee collected for a temporary instruction permit shall be deposited in the traffic safety education account in the general fund.

(3) Out of each fee of ~~((six))~~ fourteen dollars collected for a driver's license, the sum of ~~((four))~~ ten dollars and ~~((ten))~~ twenty cents shall be deposited in the highway safety fund, and ~~((one))~~ three dollars and ~~((ninety))~~ eighty cents shall be deposited in the general fund.

Out of each fee of seven dollars collected for any two-year license renewal during the period July 1, 1981, through June 30, 1983, the sum of five dollars and ten cents shall be deposited in the highway safety fund and one dollar and ninety cents shall be deposited in the general fund.

Sec. 4. Section 46.20.130, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 2, chapter 232, Laws of 1967 and RCW 46.20.130 are each amended to read as follows:

The director shall prescribe the content of the driver licensing examination and the manner of conducting the examination, which shall include but is not limited to:

(1) A test of the applicant's eyesight~~((:))~~ and his ability to see, understand, and follow highway signs regulating, warning, and directing traffic~~((; and his))~~;

(2) A test of the applicant's knowledge of traffic laws and his ability to understand and follow the directives of lawful authority, given in the English language, orally or graphically, that regulate, warn, and direct traffic in accordance with the traffic laws of this state;

~~((2))~~ (3) An actual demonstration of his ability to operate a motor vehicle in such a manner as not to jeopardize the safety of persons or property; and

~~((3))~~ (4) Such further examination as the director deems necessary (a) to determine whether any facts exist which would bar the issuance of a vehicle operator's license under chapters 46.20, 46.21 and 46.29 RCW, and (b) to determine the applicant's fitness to operate a motor vehicle safely on the highways; and

~~((4))~~ (5) In addition to the foregoing, when the applicant desires to drive a motorcycle, as defined in RCW 46.04.330, or a motor-driven cycle, as defined in RCW 46.04.332, the applicant shall also demonstrate his ability to operate such motorcycle or motor-driven cycle in such a manner as not to jeopardize the safety of persons or property.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 5. This act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety, the support of the state government and its existing public institutions, and shall take effect July 1, 1981.

Passed the Senate April 26, 1981.

Passed the House April 25, 1981.

Approved by the Governor May 18, 1981.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 18, 1981.

CHAPTER 246

[Substitute House Bill No. 520]

COMMUNITY COLLEGES—COURSES—SHARED FUNDING—STATE BOARD TREASURER

AN ACT Relating to community colleges; amending section 28B.15.500, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 5, chapter 322, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 28B.15.500; amending section 28B.50.090, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 20, chapter 151, Laws of 1979 and RCW 28B.50.090; amending section 6, chapter 14, Laws of 1979 as amended by section 11, chapter 226, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 28B.50.140; creating new sections; adding a new section to chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and to chapter 28B.50 RCW; and declaring an emergency.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 28B.15.500, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 5, chapter 322, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 28B.15.500 are each amended to read as follows:

General tuition fees, operating fees and services and activities fees at each community college other than at summer quarters shall be as follows:

(1) For full time resident students, for the 1977-78 academic year the total of general tuition and operating fees shall be two hundred and forty dollars, and for the 1978-79 academic year, and thereafter, the total of general tuition and operating fees shall be two hundred and fifty-five dollars: PROVIDED, That the general tuition fee for such academic years and